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Application Process  
On behalf of the City of Philadelphia ("City"), the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("PRA") is pleased 
to issue this Request for Proposals ("RFP") for qualified prime contractors (each, an "Applicant" and 
together, the "Applicants") for Moss Playground Renovation project located at 5700 Torresdale Avenue, 
Philadelphia, PA 19135. This project is part of the City’s Rebuilding Community Infrastructure Program 
("Rebuild"). 
 
Submission Deadline 

Applicants must submit a response/proposal (a "Response") no later than January 11, 2019 at 3:00 PM; 
absolutely no Response will be accepted after that time.  

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting 

All Applicants must attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting at Moss Playground, 5700 Torresdale Avenue 
Street, Philadelphia, PA 19135 at 10:00 A.M. on December 20, 2018. 
 
The names and contact information for all attendees at the pre-bid meeting will be posted on PRA's 
website as public information within a few days of the pre-bid meeting. 
 
Questions/Requests for Additional Information  

PRA will accept questions and requests for additional information directed in writing to 
RFP@pra.phila.gov up to 3 PM on December 28, 2018. Questions, responses, and additional information 
will be posted on the PRA Website within 3 business days of this date. 

Related Parties 

Applicants may submit only one Response to this RFP. Individuals or businesses that are legally related to 
each other or to a common entity may not submit separate Responses. The PRA and City, in their sole and 
absolute discretion, retain the right to reject any Response where:  

1. Applicants or principals of Applicants are substantially similar or substantially related parties; or; 
2. The PRA and City have determined that the Applicant has violated these conditions or the spirit 

of these conditions. 

Submission Process 

Responses will only be accepted in either of the following: 
1. Online Submission – via the electronic portal on PRA's website 
 (http://www.philadelphiaredevelopmentauthority.org/); or 
2. Hard Copy Submission – Submit 3 original copies of the Response and one electronic copy on a 

USB Flash Drive to the PRA via hand delivery or registered mail. Files on the USB Flash Drive may 
only be in Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF. Applicants may hand deliver or send their Response via 
registered mail to: 
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Robert LaBrum 
Director, Design & Construction 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 
1234 Market Street, 16th Floor 
Philadelphia, PA 19107 

Disqualification 

Responses will be disqualified if: 
1. They are submitted after the specified deadline; 
2. They are submitted by some means other than the two formats listed above. For electronic 

Responses, the PRA website portal is the only means that will be accepted. Responses sent via 
email, Dropbox or other electronic venues will be disqualified; 

3. If the Response package is incomplete. 

Bid Price 

The PRA will award this Project to the Response determined to be the most responsive based on the 
criteria explained below. Bid price is one of these criteria, though the Project will not necessarily be 
awarded to the lowest bidder. Bidders must complete and submit the Construction Bid Proposal Form 
located in Attachment A, Division 0 (Bidding and Contract Requirements). 

Bid Bonds 
Bidders must complete and submit the Bid Bond Form located in Attachment A, Division 0 (Bidding and 
Contract Requirements).  

Schedule 

The timeline for this opportunity is as follows: 
 

Event Date 
RFP posted December 6, 2018 
Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting December 20, 2018; 10:00 AM 
Questions and requests for additional 
information due  

December 28, 2018; 3:00 PM 

Responses due January 11, 2019; 3:00 PM  
Respondent selected (Estimate) January 2019 

 
PRA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to alter this schedule as it deems necessary or appropriate. 
 

Project Description/Scope of Work 
The PRA is seeking Applicants for the Moss Playground Renovation project located 5700 Torresdale 
Avenue. The work includes, but is not limited to, the demolition and removal of existing basketball court 
equipment, asphalt, concrete, fencing, etc. Grading and drainage of project area. Installation of new 
asphalt paving, concrete paving, fencing, landscaping and basketball court equipment.  
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For completed scope of work please refer to the Project Drawings and the Specifications. This project is 
part of the City’s Rebuilding Community Infrastructure Program ("Rebuild"). 
 

Response Submission Requirements 
1. Construction Bid Proposal Form located in Attachment A, Division 0 (Bidding and Contract 

Requirements). 
2. Bid Bond located in Attachment A, Division 0 (Bidding and Contract Requirements). 
3. Experience (Not to exceed two pages): Describe past experiences with providing similar projects. 

Please cite projects performed for the City of Philadelphia or other public/governmental agencies. 
Please include examples of projects that were completed on time and on budget. 

4. Approach to Project Delivery (Not to exceed one page): Describe your approach to carrying out 
the scope of work on time/budget, and strategies that make your firm qualified to best perform 
these services. Please include a detailed Project timeline. 

5. Economic Inclusion (Not to exceed one page). Provide a narrative describing Applicant's past 
performance in engaging certified Minority Business Enterprises ("MBE"), Woman Business 
Enterprises ("WBE"), and/or Disabled Business Enterprises ("DSBE") in subcontracting and in 
procuring goods and services; in addition, describe the Applicant’s past performance in hiring 
local, diverse workforce, both in-house and with subcontractors. If Applicant is a Certified MBE, 
WBE or DBE; please submit information to confirm Certification as part of bid proposal. Please 
include contract and workforce participation goals and achievements on previous projects. 
Provide a plan for meeting contract and workforce participation goals (subcontractors, etc) for 
this Project.  

6. Declarations and Other Information. Response must also include the completed forms identified 
in the Declarations and Other Information below.  

Evaluation & Selection 
PRA intends to award this Project to the Applicant that best demonstrates the level of experience, skill 
and competence required to perform the services called for in this RFP in the most efficient, cost-effective, 
and professional manner and in a manner, that is consistent with the contract and workforce 
participation goals of the Rebuild initiative. The PRA will initially review the Responses to determine 
compliance with the Response Submission Requirements. Only Responses that comply with these 
requirements will be considered for evaluation. If no Response meets these requirements, the PRA may 
allow all Applicants to supplement their Responses to conform to these requirements. 
 
PRA will evaluate Applicants based on the following factors: 
 

1. Complete application and eligibility of applicant including compliance with all requirements listed 
in this RFP; 

2. Appropriateness of firm for the scope of work, and ability to carry out the work in a high-quality 
standard on time and budget; 

3. Prior experience, including competence and proven track record working with City of Philadelphia 
and/or other public agencies; 

4. Track record of economic inclusion in contracting and workforce;  
5. Bid price; 
6. Any other factors the PRA considers relevant to the evaluation of the responses; and 
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7. Financial capability 

Events of Disqualification or Default 
Subsequent to the selection of an Applicant, and before execution of the Contract, the PRA may treat any 
of the following as an event of disqualification or default:  
 

1. Unilateral withdrawal by the selected Applicant; 
2. Failure to proceed substantially in accordance with the Response as submitted; 
3. Failure by the Applicant for any reason whatsoever to timely execute the Contract when 

tendered; 
4. Material misrepresentation, omission, or inaccuracy contained in any document submitted 

either as part of the Response, or subsequent thereto. For the purposes of this section, the 
PRA places particular importance on the information required by the Applicant in the City of 
Philadelphia Questionnaire & Financial Statement for Qualifying Bidders and the Campaign 
Contribution Disclosure Forms; 

5. Failure to provide in a timely manner the additional material required after selection 
throughout the PRA selection process. 

 
Upon the happening of an event of disqualification or default by the selected Applicant, PRA shall have 
the right, at its election, to: 
 

1. Rescind its selection; or 
2. Declare null and void a Contract that may already have been executed. 

 

Declarations and Other Information 
Economic Opportunity Plan 
 
This Project will require the selected Applicant to execute an Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP"), 
committing to exhaust its best and good faith efforts to reach goals for diverse business inclusion and to 
employ an appropriate diverse workforce. The specific goals for this Project will be determined in 
consultation with the City’s Office of Economic Opportunity. Adopted as part of City Council Resolution 
No. 180124 (2018), was a Rebuild Master Economic Opportunity Plan, which establishes certain goals for 
contracting and diverse employment for the Rebuild program. The Master EOP excerpt below is included 
in the Rebuild Project Statement, which is Attachment G of this RFP: 
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Tax Clearance and Conflict of Interest Form  
 
Applicants, upon request of the PRA, must provide evidence satisfactory to the PRA that all municipal 
taxes, including business taxes, real estate, school, water and sewer charges, if applicable, are current for 
both the individual Applicant and the Applicant's firm, and that neither is currently indebted to the City; 
will at any time during the term of the contract be indebted to the City, for or on account of any delinquent 
taxes, liens, judgments, fees or other debts for which no written agreement or payment plan satisfactory 
to the City has been established.  Please complete the Philadelphia Tax Status Certification and Conflict of 
Interest form (Attachment D) and submit it with your Response.  
 
Compliant with City of Philadelphia Revenue Department 
 
Bidders must have a current City of Philadelphia Business Activity License and have a valid contractor’s 
license. 
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Campaign Contribution Disclosure Forms  
 
Please complete the applicable disclosure forms (Attachment E) and submit with your proposal. 
 
City of Philadelphia Questionnaire & Financial Statement for Qualifying Bidders  
 
Please complete the applicable questionnaire and financial statements (Attachment H) and submit with 
your proposal. 
 
Insurance Requirements  
 
Please submit a certificate of insurance evidencing the required coverages as outlined in Attachment F 
with your Response. If, for any reason, you cannot comply with the insurance requirements, please 
provide the reasons for your inability to do so and the PRA will consider any deviations from the insurance 
requirements on a case-by-case basis. 
 
By submitting a Response to this RFP, an Applicant affirmatively acknowledges: (i) its acceptance of the 
terms and conditions of this RFP; (ii) the PRA may exercise in its sole discretion the following rights; and 
(iii) the PRA may exercise the following rights at any time and without notice to any Applicant:  

1. to reject any and all Responses; 
2. to supplement, amend, substitute, modify or re-issue the RFP with terms and conditions 

materially different from those set forth here; 
3. to cancel this RFP with or without issuing another RFP; 
4. to extend the time period for responding to this RFP;  
5. to solicit new Responses; 
6. to conduct personal interviews with any Applicant to assess compliance with the selection 

criteria; 
7. to request additional material, clarification, confirmation or modification of any information 

in any and all Responses; 
8. to negotiate any aspect of a Response, including price; 
9. to terminate negotiations regarding any and all Responses at any time; 
10. to expressly waive any defect or technicality in any Response; 
11. to rescind a selection prior to Contract execution if the PRA determines that the Response 

does not conform to the specifications of this RFP;  
12. to rescind a selection prior to Contract execution if the PRA determines that the specifications 

contained in this RFP are not in conformity with law or that the process in selection of an 
Applicant or Response was not in conformity with law or with the legal obligations of the PRA;  

13. in the event a Contract is awarded, the successful Applicant or Applicants shall procure and 
maintain during the life of the Contract liability insurance in an amount to be determined 
prior to the award of the Contract;  

14. in the event a Contract is awarded, all Applicants agree to perform their services as an 
independent contractor and not as an employee or agent of the PRA;  

15. in the event a Contract is awarded, all Applicants agree that no portion of performance of the 
contract shall be subcontracted without the prior written approval of the PRA; and 

16. each Applicant agrees to indemnify, protect and hold harmless the PRA from any and all 
losses, injuries, expenses, demands and claims against the PRA or the City sustained or alleged 
to have been sustained in connection with or resulting from (i) the submission of the 
Applicant's Response; (ii) the delivery by the Applicant to the PRA of any other documents or 
information; and (iii) any other conduct undertaken by the Applicant in furtherance of or in 
relation to the Applicant's proposal. Each Applicant agrees that its duty to indemnify and hold 
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harmless shall not be limited to the terms of any liability insurance, if any, required under this 
RFP or subsequent contract. 

 
The PRA is under no obligation whatsoever to Applicant as a result of this RFP.  The RFP does not 
represent any commitment on the part of the PRA to Applicant or the Project.  In no event shall the PRA 
be responsible for any cost, expense or fee incurred by or on behalf of Applicant in connection with the 
RFP.  Applicant shall be solely responsible for all such costs, expenses and fees. 
 
 
 NOTICE: The PRA is subject to the Pennsylvania Right to Know Law. Any information provided in your 

Response to this may be subject to disclosure to the public. Documents provided in response to this 
RFP may also be required to be disclosed by applicable law, subpoena, and/or court order. 



MOSS PLAYGROUND RENOVATION RFP
PRE-CONSTRCUTION MEETING - THURSDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2018 (10:00 AM)

Name: Company: Phone Number: Email/Website:
Richard S. Ream Seravalli Construction Co. 215-969-6500 rich.ream@seravalli.com
Randell Torres Aireko General Contractors 610-567-3335 rtorres@aireko.com
Edwin Kruah Brightline Construction 215-447-8386 edwin@brightlineconstruction.com
Redion Xhoxhi Joji Contractors 215-850-5265 redionjoji@gmail.com
Luis Cruz L. Cruz Development, LLC 215-778-7055 cruzdevelopment@comcast.net
Mike Schwed D'Angelo Bros., Inc. 215-271-7000 mschwed@dbicontractors.com
John Rutecki Rockport Constrcution Co., Inc. 610-623-2300 wally@rockportcon.com
Bob Leboffe Gessler Construction Co. 610-497-2480 gesslerconstruction@comcast.net
Bernard McFadden Philadelphia Parks & Recreation 215-683-4465 bernard.mcfadden@phila.gov



Moss Playground Renovations RFP – Questions/Answers: 
 
1. When is the anticipated NTP? 

Answer: February 2019 
 
2. When is the City Questionnaire and Financial Statement need to be submitted? Is an emailed 
submission of these items acceptable? 
  Answer: Yes 
 
3. Has the existing earth material been tested in accordance with PADEP Clean Fill Standards? 
  Answer: No 
 
4. If the material has not been tested, who is responsible for testing the material? 
  Answer: Contractor 
 
5. Can the material be managed as Clean Fill in accordance with the PADEP Clean Fill Standards? 
  Answer: Testing will determine this 
 
6. If the material cannot be managed as Clean Fill, what should we assume for bidding purposes? 
  Answer: Assume clean fill for bidding purposes. 
 
7. Will the contractor be paid for additional disposal costs if the material is not Clean Fill? 
  Answer: Yes 
 
8. Can the millings from the existing asphalt be used in the subbase for the new full depth paving? 
  Answer: Yes 
 
9. Will the use of Recycled Concrete meeting PennDOT 2A spec in lieu of stone be acceptable? 
  Answer: Yes 
 
10. Is there a geotechnical report for this project? If yes, can we have a copy of it? 
  Answer: No. There is no geotechnical report for this project 
 
11. Are there borings for this project? If yes, can we have them along with a boring location plan? 
  Answer: No. The project does not include borings 
 
12. Is there pavement core information on the existing asphalt paving to be removed in its entirety? 
  Answer: No 
 
13. Is the excavation work classified or unclassified? 
  Answer: Unclassified 
 
14. Who is responsible for testing and inspection work? 
  Answer: PPR and PRA 
 
15. Note #2 under Playground Notes on drawing G-1.0 General notes states “Playground Equipment 
is being furnish by the City of Philadelphia and installed by a separate contractor.” Is this the 
case for the basketball court pole, hoop and backboard equipment? 
  Answer: No 
 
16. Is it necessary to disturb the existing rubber playground surface? 
  Answer: Yes 
 



17. Please provide size and depth of existing basketball hoops pole foundations. 
  Answer: None available 
 
18. Can the fabric from the existing fence be reinstalled on the posts that are to remain? 
  Answer: No. Replace with new 
 
19. Will the basketball court markings be installed by others? 
  Answers: No 
 
20. Per the Site Demolition Specification 02075 please advise if the existing basketball court 
equipment is being salvaged or demolished and the contractor will dispose? 
  Answer: Demolish and the contractor will dispose 
 
21. Please confirm per the Earthwork Specification 02200 Paragraph 1.4C, Asphalt Paving 
Specification 02510 Paragraph 3.5A and Contractor’s Quality Control Specification 014516.13 
Paragraph 1.5A that all Field testing and Inspections will be by the owner. 
  Answer: Yes 
 
22. Please advise if it will be necessary for this project to have Project Identification Signage.  
  Answer: Yes 

23.  The plan indicates that the existing basketball courts are to be milled and repaved. Please advise if 
the courts are to be color coated and line striped. Please provide a spec for the painting and color 
coating if this work is to required. 
  Answer: Yes 
 
24. Please provide colors and mix ratios for the 1’ wide safety surface repair along the new fence 
line/concrete sidewalk at the playground area 
  Answer: Blue/Green. Contractor must visit site for closer review. 
 
25. Fence between basketball court & funnel Ball: Plan calls for removal of existing fabric and replace 
with new black vinyl fabric on existing framework. Is the framework to be painted? The existing 
framework has no middle rail. Will a middle rail be required for the 8’ high fence? 
  Answer: Yes. Framework to be sanded and painted. 
  Answer: Yes. A middle rail is required 

26: Do the insurance requirements in Attachment F override those in the Standard Contract as there are 
multiple differences. 

Answer: Yes  
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